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September 17, 2020 
 
Sean Mayo – Pipeline Safety Director 
Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission 
PO Box 47250 
Olympia, WA 98504-7250 
 
Subject: CNGC follow-up response to Probable Violation and Area of Concern RE: 2020 Natural Gas Investigation 
– Cascade Natural Gas Corporation (CNGC) – Bremerton District – (Insp. No. 8203) 
 
Dear Mr. Mayo,  
 
This letter is Cascade Natural Gas Corporation’s (CNGC) follow-up response to the response letter submitted on August 10, 
2020 addressing one probable violation and one area of concern stemming from the random field crew inspection on May 28, 
2020 at 6228 Illahee Road NE in Bremerton, Washington in Cascade Natural Gas Corporation’s (CNGC) Bremerton District 
(Inspection No. 8203).   
 
In the response letter dated August 10, 2020, CNGC compiled a list of locations where Unit F0739, the Michels weld truck 
(identified on May 28, 2020 as having a gas scope, pyrometer, half-cell, and gauges with expired calibration dates), was 
present and where equipment with an expired calibration date was used during the installation of CNGC facilities. A review 
of the work performed at these job sites has been completed. This review included calibration records, time records, as-built 
documentation, and operator qualifications of involved Michels personnel. Results of the review are as follows: 
 
Calibration Records 
The pyrometer with serial number 41690274WS that was used past the calibration expiration date from March 15, 2020 to 
May 28, 2020 was calibrated by Robb Precision Tool Services on June 10, 2020. The calibration report indicates the 
instrument was received in tolerance, thus indicating temperature readings taken were accurate. (See Figure 1.) The 
multimeter with serial number 41430029 that was used past the calibration expiration date from March 18, 2020 to May 28, 
2020 was calibrated by JJ Calibrations, Inc. on June 12, 2020. The calibration report indicates the instrument was received in 
tolerance, thus indicating pipe and wire potentials taken were accurate. (See Figure 2.) The half cell with serial number 
C6462 that was used past the calibration expiration date from April 3, 2020 to May 28, 2020 was calibrated by M.C. Miller 
Co., Inc. on August 25, 2020. The calibration report indicates the instrument was received in tolerance, thus indicating pipe 
and wire potentials taken were accurate. (See Figure 3.)  
 
CNGC determined that the facilities installed with the equipment described above with an expired calibration date used 
during the installation of CNGC facilities do not require remedial action because the equipment was received in tolerance.  
 
As stated in the response letter dated August 10, 2020, the gas scope with an expired expiration date was used on May 28, 
2020 during the installation of a 336-foot service line at 6228 Illahee Road NE, Bremerton. Per CNGC Policy Statement OPS 
603 – Pipeline Purging and Cleaning, a combustible gas indicator (i.e. gas scope) is required to verify 100% gas of one-inch 
service lines 150 feet or longer. Because 6228 Illahee Road NE has a meter and the customer is using natural gas, we know 
the service line was properly purged of air prior to being placed into service. 
 
Time Records 
In lieu of time records, CNGC conducted an exhaustive review of GPS records for Unit F0739. The review identified ten 
additional CNGC job sites where Unit F0739 was present and tools with an expired calibration date may have been used 
during the installation of CNGC facilities.  
 
As-built Documentation 
In addition to the review of the fourteen locations reported in the August 10, 2020 response, CNGC reviewed the as-built 
records of the ten additional locations. CNGC identified one gauge serial number entry that did not match those assigned to 
Unit F0739; however, ultimately determined it was a data entry error.  
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Operator Qualifications 
Seventeen Michel’s employees were present at one or more of the twenty-four locations where Unit F0739 was present and 
equipment with an expired calibration date was used or may have been used during the installation of CNGC facilities. 
CNGC Compliance department personnel reviewed the Operator Qualification records of the seventeen Michel’s employees. 
Each location had employees qualified for the covered tasks required for the equipment with expired calibration dates: Plastic 
Pipe: Butt Heat Fusion, Plastic Pipe: Sidewall Heat Fusion, Pipe-to-Soil Testing, and Purging. 
 
CNGC has concluded that the use of equipment from Unit F0739 between March 15, 2020 and May 28, 2020 did not affect 
the safety or integrity of its pipelines or facilities; therefore, CNGC believes no further mitigation is necessary. CNGC will 
continue to periodically monitor equipment calibration expiration dates during inspections conducted by our Quality Control 
Department.  
 
Please contact Josh Sanders at (701) 222-7773 with questions or comments.  
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 

 
 
Pat Darras 
Vice President, Engineering & Operations Services 
Cascade Natural Gas Corporation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

FIGURE 1 – Pyrometer SN: 41690274WS 

 
 
 



  

FIGURE 2 – Multimeter SN: 41430029 

 
 
 
 
 



  

FIGURE 3 – HALF CELL SN: C6462 

 


